
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Minutes
Board of Commissioners


   October 13, 2011
   7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, October 13, 2011, at 7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Commissioner Absent: Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
________________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Frady called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda: Commissioner Brown made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  Commissioner
Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Commissioner McCarty was absent.


Presentation/Recognition:
1. Proclamation declaring October 19, 2011 as “Meals on Wheels Day”:


Commissioner Horgan read and the Board presented a Proclamation declaring October 19, 2011 as “Meals on Wheels
Day” to Senior Services Director Debbie Britt.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 2


Public Hearing:
2. Consideration of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Janata Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a MD Food Mart,


2400 SR 138, Fayetteville, Georgia, Mohsin Dhanani, Chotubhai Dhanani, Dilshad Dhanani, Owners, and
Mohsin Dhanani, Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 198 of the 13  District, fronts on SRth


138 and SR 314, and is zoned C-C.  This is for a Change of Ownership:


Zoning Director Dennis Dutton presented this item for discussion.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He read the rules for rezonings.  A copy
of the rules for rezonings, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


He remarked that this applicant had received approval from the Board on  August 25, 2011 but failed to pay the fee within
the two week time frame, therefore making the application void.  He said the applicant was asking for consideration of
approval tonight for this packaged beer and wine license for Janata Enterprises.


Chairman Frady asked if the applicant was present for the discussion and no one responded.  He asked if anyone in the
audience wished to speak in favor of this petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to speak in opposition and
there was none.  He asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the packaged beer and wine license for Janata Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a
MD Food Mart, 2400 SR 138, Fayetteville.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Commissioner Brown said he would always impress upon staff that the applicants for these requests be present at the
Commission meetings.  He said the Board might have questions and their absence might put their ability to receive
approval in jeopardy.  He said staff should strongly encourage petitioners to appear at the Commission meeting to
discuss their item.  


Chairman Frady called the question.  The motion carried 4-0.  Commissioner McCarty was absent.  


Public Comment:
Steve Smithfield: Steve Smithfield remarked that there had been hundreds of public comments and newspaper articles
in which the citizens of Fayette County expressed their ire over the West Fayetteville Bypass now known as Veterans
Parkway. He called attention to the front page of The Citizen Newspaper with the story regarding a newly released
development project along Veterans Parkway.  He said this article illustrated a proposed 2,000 acre development on
both sides of the Bypass with partial funding from Fayette County Development Authority and also the City of
Fayetteville.  A copy of his comment sheet, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.  


David Hall: David Hall said it was his recommendation that the Board not fund the West Fayetteville Bypass, activate
HB 240 and lower millage rates and to stick with the priorities of Fayette County and its citizens.


Gordon Furr: Gordon Furr said he had spoken to a member of the Department of Transportation about why there had
not been a study done on the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He said he was informed that the D.O.T. does not do traffic
studies on roads that were not Georgia Highways and this should be done by the County Administrator.  He questioned
why this had not been done.  He questioned why the dangerous curve on Sandy Creek Road and Adams Road had not
been addressed as well as the condition of the bridge on Westbridge Road.  He asked if there could be a minister at
each Commission meeting to give the invocation.  
  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 3


Jerome Walker:   Mr. Walker signed up to speak but declined to come forward when his name was called.


Bob Ross: Bob Ross thanked Commissioner Horgan for all of his work on the Meals on Wheels Program at the Senior
Center.  He said this requires a lot of time and he applauded Commissioner Horgan for his involvement.  He remarked
that he had attended the last meeting of the Regional Transportation Roundtable this morning.  He noted that there had
been successes as well as concerns.  He said the success was to get representatives from ten different counties
together and come up with a unanimous agreement on something.  He said Fayette County was due to receive
approximately $187 million over the next ten years worth of projects and a bag of cash.  He said his biggest concern was
the fact, if this tax should pass, that Fayette County would be locked in with MARTA and all of its issues.  He remarked
that out of the $6.1 billion that was approved for the projects, virtually half was going to transit including bus and rail
systems.  He said he had spoken with the Director of MARTA and discussed some of the figures that he had researched.
He said the Director concurred with him that these figures were correct.  He said MARTA’s operating losses were over
half a billion dollars a year that was being drained out of the ten county economy and spent on the system.  He said the
CEO of MARTA said two weeks ago in an AJC article that they were forecasting a $2.2 billion shortfall and that included
the $700 million that might come from the T-SPLOST.  He said there was no plan going forward to change any of those
metrics.  He said this was nothing more than doubling down on a situation that has hamstrung DeKalb and Fulton
Counties and now Fayette County was a member of that group.   


Randy Ognio: Randy Ognio commented on the proposed development along the West Fayetteville Bypass and said
this was a far cry from keeping the County rural.  He said the citizens in Fayette County had moved here because they
did not want to live in the middle of a  city but moved here to be in the country.  He expressed further disappointment
in the fact that Mr. Lester was a member of the Fayette County Development Authority and his property was included
in this proposed development.  He said this was very disturbing to him as well as the fact that Commissioner Hearn was
part of that family too.    


Roy Bishop: Mr. Bishop signed up to speak but declined when his name was called.


Tom Waller: Tom Waller remarked on the sharp turn on Sandy Creek Road and Tillman Road.  He said there used to
be a sweeping curve  that is now blocked by orange barrels and could not be currently used.  He expressed concern
over the dump trucks and ambulances traveling on Sandy Creek being able to navigate this particular curve. He said
this curve was there to facilitate traveling up Veterans Parkway which is not even there yet.  He said this was “stupid”
to put this curve in the road at this point in time with the development of Veterans Parkway not being finished.           
                                                                  
Consent Agenda: Commissioner Brown requested item no. 6 be removed for discussion.  Commissioner Brown   made
a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented with the exception of item no. 6.  Commissioner Horgan seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Commissioner McCarty was absent.


Finance Department - Munis Software System:
3. Approval of staff’s request for funding in the amount of $5,500 for an enhancement to the County’s MUNIS


software system to create an export file adhering to the record layout as required by Georgia Department of
Revenue for submitting business occupation tax data to the State.  A copy of the request and backup, identified
as “Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 4


Finance department - Council of Juvenile Court Judges of Georgia Grant Award:
4. Authorization for the Chairman to execute documents accepting a Grant Award for the period October, 2011 -


September, 2012, in the amount of $7,500 from the Council of Juvenile Court Judges of Georgia for providing
community alternatives to juvenile incarceration.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment
No. 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Fire and Emergency Services - Bid Award #790 to Tag Grinding Services:
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #790 for short term debris removal during times of extreme


inclement weather or declared county disaster to low bidder Tag Grinding Services; and authorization for the
Chairman to execute subsequent contracts or agreements pending approval by the County Attorney. A copy
of the request, backup and agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.  


Fire and Emergency Services - Memorandum of Understanding between Fayette County and the Town of Tyrone
for sewer Access:
6. Approval of staff’s recommendation for approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between Fayette County


and the Town of Tyrone for sewer access from Tyrone for a proposed fire station site; and authorization for the
Chairman to execute said agreement pending approval of the County Attorney.  A copy of the request, backup
and Memorandum of Understanding, identified as “Attachment No.  8", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


Commissioner Brown asked for clarification on something that he had been told by some individuals that there may be
a conflict related to this site regarding the possibility that Chairman Frady might have a business relationship with one
of the two owners of this property either as an agent or a land seller.  He asked Chairman Frady if he had dealt with
either of these property owners in a business relationship. Chairman Frady asked who the owners of the property were
and Commissioner Brown replied Mr. Rolader and Mr. Scarborough.  Chairman Frady said these individuals were not
members of his family and he had never done business with them.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve consent agenda item no. 6 as presented.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Commissioner McCarty was absent.


Fire and Emergency Services - Spillman Technologies, Inc. contract for mobile computer licenses:
7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept the quote from Spillman Technologies, Inc. for the acquisition


of thirty-six mobile computer licenses in the amount of $58,572; and authorization for the Chairman to execute
any necessary contracts and documents to complete the acquisition pending approval by the County Attorney.
A copy of the request and contract, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


Fire and Emergency Services - Trade of firefighter’s turnout coats and turnout pants that are no longer usable
to Gloves, Inc.
8. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to trade twenty-six sets of firefighter’s turnout coats and thirty-three


pairs of turnout pants that are no longer usable, to Gloves, Inc. for a credit of $1,475 toward the County’s
ongoing current turnout cleaning costs. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 5


Fire and Emergency Services - Disposal of Fighter Uniforms:
9. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to dispose of firefighter uniforms that are no longer serviceable.


A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  


Fleet Maintenance Department - Bid #794 awarded to Wade Ford, Inc.:
10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #794 to low bidder Wade Ford, Inc. for the purchase of a Ford


F-450 Cab and Chassis in the amount of $34,765.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment
No. 12", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Fleet Maintenance Department - Approval to sell three County Assets on GovDeals Internet Website:
11. Approval of staff’s request to declare three County assets as unserviceable and authorization to sell the assets


utilizing the GovDeals internet website.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 13"“, follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Fleet Maintenance Department - Approval to Declare Eight County Vehicles Unserviceable and sell the assets
on GovDeals Internet Website:
12. Approval of staff’s request to declare eight county vehicles as unserviceable and authorization to sell the assets


utilizing the GovDeals internet website, and for all proceeds to be returned to the Vehicle Replacement Fund.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  


Library - Award Bid #797 to Source Interiors, LLC:
13. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #797 for furnishings for the new addition at the Fayette County


Public Library to Source Interiors, LLC in the amount of $95,832.87. A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 15", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Public Works - Approval of Nondiscrimination Agreement and Title VI Assurances:
14. Approval of staff’s request to initiate use of and compliance with the Georgia Department of Transportation’s


Nondiscrimination Agreement and Title VI Assurances; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said
documents pending approval by the County Attorney.  A copy of the request and Agreement, identified as
“Attachment No. 16", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Sheriff’s Department - Amend Overtime Budget:  
15. Approval of the Sheriff’s Department’s request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations


Division by $2,542.21 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Tax Assessor’s Office - Requests for Tax Refunds:  
16. Approval of recommendations from the Tax Assessors’ Office regarding requests for tax refunds.  A copy of


the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 18"“, follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


Minutes:
17. Approval of minutes for the Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on September 22, 2011.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 6


Old Business:
18. Consideration of staff’s request to approve Contract Addendum No. 2 (Proposal P764) with Jacobs


Engineering Group, Inc. authorizing expenditures not to exceed $180,000 to perform additional tasks
required by the EPD to complete Phase II of the Methane Remediation Plan for the First Manassas Mile
Road Southside Landfill; and authorization for the Chairman to execute the contract addendum pending
approval by the County Attorney:


Stormwater Director Vanessa Birrell discussed this item with the Board and asked for consideration of approval of the
Contract Addendum #2.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof. She said this Addendum would allow for Jacobs Engineering Group to perform the
additional tasks required by the EPD to complete the Phase II of the Methane Remediation Plan for the First Manassas
Mile Road Southside Landfill.  She remarked that Phase II was the installation and the proposed methane extraction
systems.  She said the additional tasks required to implement the Methane Remediation Plan were the venting system
installations, system startup and operation and maintenance, installation reporting and preliminary evaluation report to
the EPD.  She said this would provide compliance for the County as required by the EPD.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Contract Addendum No. 2 (Proposal P764) with Jacobs Engineering
Group, Inc. authorization expenditures not to exceed $180,000 to perform additional tasks required by the EPD to
complete Phase II of the Methane Remediation Plan for the First Manassas Mile Road Southside Landfill and to
authorize the Chairman to execute the contract addendum pending approval by the County Attorney.  Commissioner
Hearn  seconded the motion, discussion followed.  


Commissioner Brown said he would be voting in opposition because he felt this should have been put out for bid.
Commissioner Horgan questioned Ms. Birrell why this had not been put out for bid.  Ms. Birrell replied that this was a
highly technical operation that would require a lot of engineering oversight and the County would be operating under a
bid that went out for an RFP about this same time last year.  She said these are current prices and it was for the exact
same services that went out for bid and only an addendum to the RFP.


The motion carried 3-1 with Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.  Commissioner McCarty was absent. A copy of
Contract Addendum No. 2, identified as “Attachment No. 20", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


19. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to reduce the County’s participation in the Georgia Municipal
Association Lease Pool Program, including the outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation and
the associated interest rate swap agreement by the amount of the account balance determined to be
“excess funds:


Chief Finance Officer Mary Holland discussed this item with the Board and asked for consideration for approval of staff’s
recommendation to reduce the County’s participation in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 21", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. She said
Fayette County had actually entered into this agreement with GMA back in 1998 and through this program it was
providing a financial leasing arrangement where the County issued Certificates of Participation and their amount was
for $5 million.  She said at the time, the County actually utilized this agreement to finance vehicles and other heavy
equipment.  She remarked the agreement was structured in a way that the interest rate at that time was 4.75%.  She
noted that shortly after the County entered into an interest swap agreement which has a level of risk.  She pointed out
that throughout the program the County actually leased 221 vehicles for an amount of $6.9 million.  She said the
agreement is set up in such a way that if funds are not utilized then those funds become excess funds.  She said this
requires utilization of the funds or reduce participation.  She said staff was recommending a reduction in the County’s







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 7


participation in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, including the outstanding amount of Certificates
of Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement by the estimated amount of $1,889,000 which has been
determined to be “excess funds.”


Commissioner Brown  made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to reduce the County’s participation in the
Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, including the outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation
and the associated interest rate swap agreement by the amount of the account balance determined to be “excess funds.”
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Commissioner McCarty was absent for the vote.


New Business:
20. Consideration of the reappointment of Terri Willis to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for


a three year term with said term commencing on July 1, 2011 and expiring on June 30, 2014:


Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s consideration in this matter.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 22", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the reappointment of Terri Willis to the McIntosh Trail Community
Service Board for a three year term with said term commencing on July 1, 2011 and expiring on June 30, 2014.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.  Commissioner Brown said because of his ongoing
commentary related to board, authority and committee appointments, he felt in order to handle this in the most
democratic way possible to achieve the greatest participation County wide and to achieve a better diversity of individuals,
that these positions should be advertised in the local media and on the County website in order to try and bring people
into government and encourage them to participate.  He said the County had a long history of continually reappointing
the same people time and time again where there is no solicitation of new membership.  He felt there might be some
missed opportunities for some people who have some incredible levels of expertise in various fields who are by virtue
of living here are readily available to the County at no charge.  Commissioner Brown said based on principle that this
was not advertised, he could not vote in favor of this tonight and this was in no way anything against Terri Willis. 


Executive Assistant Carol Chandler interjected that the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board is headquartered in
Griffin.  She noted that the seats on this board that each county has is based on population and there was certain criteria
related to mental health. She remarked that Terri Willis meets that criteria and has served two prior terms.  Chairman
Frady said Ms. Willis had provided a good service for the county and he had no problem in reappointing her. 


The motion carried 3-1 with Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.  Commissioner McCarty was absent.


21. Consideration of the appointment of Leslie Edwards to the Region Six Mental Health Planning Board
for a term to be determined by the Commissioner of the Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and
Developmental Disabilities:


Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s consideration in this matter.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 23", follows these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Horgan said as a member of the Fayette County Board of Health there had been some openings in
several boards.  He pointed out that this appointment had not been vetted out to the public but had been decided on as
a result of speaking with some private individuals who came to him and talked about their experience and wanting to
serve.  He said Ms. Edwards was one of these individuals who came to him expressing a desire to serve on this board.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 8


He pointed out that Ms. Edwards has a tremendous background in the mental health field and he wanted to present Ms.
Edwards for consideration to be appointed to the Region Six Mental Health Planning Board.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to appoint Leslie Edwards to the Region Six Mental Health Planning Board for
a term to be determined by the Commissioner of the Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental
Disabilities.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.  Commissioner Brown remarked he knows
Ms. Edwards personally and he has a lot of respect for her and he was certain that she would do a fabulous job but
based on principle of not advertising positions, he would be voting in opposition. The motion carried 3-1 with
Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.  Commissioner McCarty was absent.


22. Consideration of reappointment of Charles McCollum  to Post 1 on the Fayette County Recreation
Commission for a four year term with said term commencing on September 1, 2011 and will expire on
August 31, 2015.  


Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s consideration in this matter.   A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.
24", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Horgan remarked that Charles McCollum has served on the Fayette County Recreation Commission for
the past term and has turned things around tremendously and really brought things together in the Recreation
Department.  He said Mr. McCollum was willing to serve for another four year term and he felt Charles would be a
wonderful addition on that commission again.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to reappoint Charles McCollum to Post 1 on the Fayette County Recreation
Commission for a four year term with said term commencing on September 1, 2011 and expiring on August 31, 2015.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.  Commissioner Brown said he knew Mr. McCollum
personally and remarked that he was a wonderful individual and grateful for all of his participation in youth sports in
Fayette County.  He said because of principle that this position was not advertised,  he would be voting in opposition.


Chairman Frady pointed out that Mr. McCollum has done a great job for the County serving on the Recreation
Commission and he would be voting in favor of this gentleman.  


The motion carried 3-1 with Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.  Commissioner McCarty was absent. 


Administrator’s Reports:
There was none.  


Commissioners Reports:
Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown commented on the article on the front page of The Citizen Newspaper
regarding the West Fayetteville Bypass and the proposed development plan shown as a high density project.  He said
there had been constant discussion about how the West Fayetteville Bypass has nothing to do with developers and was
not a developer welfare project and all about traffic relief.  He said there has been nothing found regarding statistics that
show the road has anything to do with traffic relief or relieves the current traffic congestion.  He said it can be shown
beyond a shadow of doubt that it does have something to do with development.  He said there is a major plan on the
Southern most part of the West Fayetteville Bypass as currently stated in the newspaper.  He said this is a high density
project and there are several landowners on the Northern section.  He said The Citizen Newspaper did a good job
covering this, but unfortunately The Citizen only covered 50% of it.  He said he  would soon be addressing the other 50%
in a letter to the Editor of The Citizen.  He said there were other landowners going further North including John Wieland







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 9


Homes, Fayette Builders and the Wyatt family who has already submitted plans on their property.  He said everyone
knows these individuals own large parcels of property and know that they are going to develop that property.  He said
it was no mistake that there was an empty elementary school built on the West Fayetteville Bypass by accident and was
done on purpose to accommodate the development as shown on the proposed plan.  He said he did not appreciate the
deception of saying that this did not have anything to do with development, and he did not appreciate the deception by
the Board of Education saying that if Rivers Elementary School was not built there would have to be trailers at the other
elementary schools because the population has declined.  He noted that in their documentation the School Board had
clearly said that Fayette County would face a school overcrowding problem and be subject to putting trailers behind the
schools.  He said East Fayette Elementary School has since been closed and we are on the verge of closing either
Brooks or Tyrone Elementary Schools, with Inman Elementary being half full and Rivers Elementary is empty.  He said
he did not consider this good government or be in the best interest of the citizens.  He said the most shameful part of
it all was the road that was cited to relieve traffic congestion would actually, once it was developed, increase the levels
of traffic drastically as it appears in this documentation. He said the Mayor of Fayetteville has made it known that he
would like to annex this property into the City to allow sewer.  He said if this occurs, we all know that this means higher
density development.  He said he had also been told that there was a Publix Shopping Center that was even sited to
be on this bottom portion near S.R. 54.  He said the traffic would only increase and this would not do anything to relieve
traffic.  He said this is the T.D.K. extension part 2.  


Commissioner Hearn: Commissioner Hearn remarked that a traffic study had been done in 2003 by an independent
traffic consultant and they had recommended several improvements in the County and one included the West
Fayetteville Bypass as well as the East Fayetteville Bypass.  He said in 2004 the citizens had voted in favor of a SPLOST
and indicated that they wanted improvements to the County’s traffic system.  He said the project list was very clear as
far as what projects were eligible. He said once the SPLOST was passed by the citizens. this Board has been working
on the projects on that list and the West Fayetteville Bypass is one of those projects.  He said he would absolutely agree
with Commissioner Brown that traffic was going to increase.  He said there are already backups on S.R. 85 and S.R.
54 in the mornings and afternoons.  He said there has to be some alternative routes for the traffic flows around the
Fayetteville downtown area.  He felt the citizens have charged this Board with doing this and that was what this Board
has been working on.  He said he was sorry that many citizens are unhappy with this.  He said if his property was being
taken, he would not be happy about this either.  He said Commissioner Brown has to be reminded from time to time that
we are not the School Board.  He said the Board of Commissioners does not choose where the schools are built, or
choose where and how they manage the school system.  


Chairman Frady: Chairman Frady remarked that the Board of Commissioners has no authority over the Fayette County
Board of Education.  He said the only thing that the Board of Commissioners has to do, by State law, is to approve the
Board of Education’s millage rate. He also commented on the road improvements being done to remove the hump in
the roadway at the railroad track located on Sandy Creek Road.  He said there were many positive things happening
in Fayette County but felt these were never mentioned.  He commented on his real estate license and said he has had
one since 1965 and does keep it active in case he needs to do something like that again.  


Commissioner Horgan: Commissioner Horgan said the transportation plan was something that was derived in 2006
by Chairman Greg Dunn and this was one of the good things that he had done.  He said Chairman Dunn had gotten the
landowners on S.R. 54 together and this was where they had come up with this plan.  He said the leaders,
Commissioners, Mayors, and Council members all got together and had thoughts to move forward.  He said to him this
was the right thing to do rather than being reactive.  He said he had received numerous calls and e-mails since the article
appeared in the newspaper about the proposed development.  He said people indicated to him that this was a good thing
for the community.  He said he disagreed with Commissioner Brown’s remark that this was a high density development
plan.  He said this plan indicates that there will be over several thousand acres of open space.  He said he had never







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 13, 2011


Page 10


been approached by a developer  to build anything or given money to build anything or anything of that nature.  He said
all of these pieces of property could be accessed from S.R. 54, Tyrone Road as well as Sandy Creek Road.  He noted
that the access had always been there.  He said a project like this would not happen anytime in the near future.  He said
there was no one single person who would have this kind of money to build these kinds of projects.  He felt it was
prudent on the part of this Board to look into the future and plan accordingly.


Adjournment:   Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Brown made a motion to adjourn
the meeting at 8:00 p.m.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Commissioner McCarty
was absent.    


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                        Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 10  day of November, 2011.th


___________________________________
 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


October 27, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on October 27, 2011, at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Chairman Frady called the October 27, 2011 Board of Commissioners Meeting to Order at 7:00 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn gave the Invocation and led the Audience in the Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as presented to the Board.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of November 2011 as “Retired Educators Month in Fayette County.”


Vice-Chairman Horgan gave the proclamation designating November 2011 as “Retired Educators Month in
Fayette County”.  Before reading the proclamation, he informed the audience that for the past 53 years, the
Georgia Retired Educators Association has been dedicated for improving the welfare and retirement of
educators, and to providing opportunities for them to be involved in community activities.  He said there are 







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 2


over 86,000 retired educators in the State of Georgia, who greatly influenced the children, and this proclamation
is the least Fayette County can do in recognition of this honored body of teachers.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


B. Ann Wright:  Ms. Wright said she was just made aware that the Board was going to be evaluating whether or not to
withdraw from the Flint River Regional Library System, and that she had concerns about that.  As an author, she
expressed thankfulness for the ability to use the libraries several times a week throughout the county.  She urged the
Board to treat this matter with a great deal of respect for the citizens of Fayette County.  


Chairman Frady asked Ms. Wright if she would reveal where she heard her information.  Ms. Wright replied that several
people at the Peachtree City Library had given her the information.  A copy of Ms. Wright’s notes, identified as
“Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Steve Smithfield: Mr. Smithfield complimented the Board, the Public Works Division, and all other County employees
who were involved with the recent placement of signs along Sandy Creek Road.  He explained that there was a
dangerous curve on Sandy Creek, that his wife contacted the County about it, and that the next day there was huge,
flashing, safety signs placed on the road.  Mr. Smithfield also complimented the County who responded to his calls about
trespassers on his property.  He said in both cases the County acted properly in the interest of the safety of its citizens,
and he wanted to compliment the County for its work.


Denise Ognio: Mrs. Ognio began by explaining that the Wednesday Workshop Meeting is designed to be a time where
the individual Commissioners’ expertise is brought to the table in order to address the needs and concerns of the
community.  She noted that the Board is comprised of five men, each of whom have different talents and abilities, and
that they were put into their position to work as a team.  She continued that the citizens who address the Board do so,
not out of anger, but out of concern for the County.  She spoke about her husband, Randy, who makes a practice of
reviewing the agenda and provides his ideas to the Board, based on his own experience.  She said Randy was recently
questioned about why he was so negative, and she suggested that once the citizens are heard and taken care of, there
would be no need to give the Board anything but compliments.  She closed by asking the Board to listen to its citizens.
A copy of Mrs. Ognio’s supporting material, identified as “Attachment 3", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


Gordon Furr: Mr. Furr reminded the Board that he did not appreciate the requirement to sign in before speaking during
Public Comment to the Board.  He then transitioned to speaking about Fire Station 3 in Tyrone, about the septic issues
at the fire station, and about his concerns with the county overspending for an unwarranted location at the corner of
Jenkins Road.  Mr. Furr then commented on the West Fayetteville Bypass saying there was no traffic or environmental
studies conducted that justified the road.


David Hall: Mr. Hall noted that the West Fayetteville Bypass had been criticized by most of the citizens who attend public
meetings, and that it had been criticized in the local newspapers.  He said, despite the criticism, the majority of the Board
continues to approve the construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass, which only seems to serve the purposes of
developers.  He explained that the people are watching the Board, and that he agreed with Mr. Randy Ognio’s statement,
“If it isn’t about the developers, then I don’t know what it is about.”  He said the Board would lose its current benefits with
the developers after the next election.  He concluded that the 2004 SPLOST Referendum ballot did not mention the West
Fayetteville Bypass, that those who put the interest of the County first should hold the position of Commissioner, but that
the people believed there were special interests behind building the Bypass.







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 3


Randy Ognio: Mr. Ognio commented on a number of items on the current agenda.  He asked about Consent Agenda
Item 8, and he asked if, during a depressed economy and a tight economy, if now was the time to spend money on the
Parks and Recreation Project.  He noticed that several Agenda requests did not have three or more bids associated with
them, but he focused on Consent Agenda Item 9 by asking how hard was it to get three bids on a fencing project.  He
added that New Business Items 17 and 18 did include many invitations to bid, but that only two of the invitations were
sent to qualified companies who could do the work.  He next questioned Old Business Item 12 by asking why the starting
salary was so high.  He suggested that the salary was out of range, and that it did not include benefits and additional
costs to Fayette County, and he asked where the funds for the new position would come from.  He closed his comments
by questioning New Business Item 16 with the opinion that Jack Smith was on the Public Facilities Authority because
he was a Commissioner at the time he was appointed.  He was concerned that a sitting Commissioner was not on the
Authority, and was concerned about the information and work coming from that Authority.


Thomas (Tom) Waller: Mr. Waller first thanked the Public Works Division for putting signs along Sandy Creek Road
informing drivers of the dangerous curve.  He said he did not know who wrote the “efficiency report for the guy who
approves the layout of these roads” but that the signs were an effort to clean up that person’s mistake.  He said the one
who approved the dangerous curve was putting citizens at risk, and that it should be noted on that person’s evaluation.
He then said that he supports the County obtaining bids from vendors for its contracts, and that while he understood that
there might be cause to remain with a particular vendor, it appeared Fayette County had fallen into a “good old boy”
system, and he thought the County could do a better job.


Tom Halpin: Mr. Halpin said that while it was important for the County to look to the far future and plan for things to
come, it was also necessary to look at the near future to see areas of concern.  He pointed out all of the development
that has occurred in Fayette County, and how there are thousands of vacant lots within the subdivisions, and he asked
how the County intended to rectify the issue.  He said that the County should work with the School Board, and instead
of continually saying the School Board is its own body, that the School Board and the County should work together to
address the common needs of the County.  Next, he spoke about the “McDuff Bypass” and how the citizens are cautious
since “any initiative for a road in Fayette County cannot be trusted.”  He closed by commenting on the Invocation and
how the prayer is often for unity and trust among the Board members.  He said the prayer should be for a fostering of
unity and trust between the Board and its citizens, and that the Board often appears to be creating disunity and distrust
among the citizens.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown asked to remove Items 2, 6, 7, 8 and 9 from the Consent Agenda for consideration.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve the Consent Agenda excluding Items 2, 6, 7, 8 and 9.  Commissioner Brown
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the County renew its Employee Assistance Program (EAP)
services with One Source Counseling & Employee Assistance Services at a revised rate of $1.45 per
employee per month for six months beginning January 1, 2012; and authorization for the Chairman to
sign the agreement and other related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


Commissioner Brown said one thing he thought the County and staff needed to pay attention to, pertaining to
the forthcoming contracts, is that the vendors need to understand the dynamics of how the County does its
budgeting.  He added that with vendors continually coming to the Board, in the middle of a fiscal year, with the
intention of changing the terms of the agreement.  He said he did not know what kind of language was being







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 4


used with some of the vendors, or how the County was portraying its budget situation, but he asked for the
County to somehow say to the vendors that the County does have a budgeting cycle, here is how it works, and
if you need to make changes, they need to be made at the appropriate time in the budgeting cycle.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel said one of the issues Fayette County has dealt with over the course of the
four to five years, and one issue he has been working to get a handle on, is to understand that the County has
many multiple contracts for all types of services and programs, and all of them have different start dates and
finish dates.  He said the County is making an effort to bring them all into alignment with its fiscal year, so that
all contracts have an effective date of July 1 with a termination date of June 30.  He said this is another ongoing
initiative, and that is the reason staff has requested a six-month extension to get to the point to where the
County can go ahead and bid this request.  He said the current vendor has been the current vendor since 2008,
that staff has checked the rates and found them consistent with what other EAP providers are charging local
governments, and that is why staff requested the six-month extension, in order for the County to have the ability
to bid out the services and to have a contract effective date beginning July 1.  Discussion followed.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 2.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to change the established shared cost allocations of the Fire
Services Fund and the Emergency Medical Service Fund to reflect the reassignment of an ambulance
from Fire Station 2 to Station 1.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s request to use remaining grant funds to purchase Adobe software, Visio software
and one media projector, in an amount not to exceed $1,282.72 for the Department of Fire and
Emergency Services.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Sheriff’s Office Criminal Investigations
Division by $286.16 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7" follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the County enter into an Agreement with Transcontinental Gas
Pipeline Company, LLC, allowing the County to work within their easement during construction of the
West Fayetteville Bypass, including a payment of $10,000 by the County to reimburse the cost of the
Company’s on-site engineer; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said Agreement.


Commissioner Brown noted that the requested project has a cost of $10,000, that it is related to the West
Fayetteville Bypass, and that he has taken a firm stand on not support the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He
thought the West Fayetteville Bypass was not a project that should be built, and he said he could not support
this request.







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 5


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 6.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.
A copy of the request and agreement with Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company, identified as “Attachment
8", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the County enter into an agreement with Georgia Transmission
Corporation which will allow the County to work within the power easements owned by said company
during construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass Project, Phase II; and authorization for the
Chairman to execute said Agreement.


Commissioner Brown said this is a similar situation with Consent Agenda Item 6 in that it involves the West
Fayetteville Bypass Phase II, and he could not support the project. 


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 7.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.
A copy of the request and agreement with Georgia Transmission Corporation, identified as “Attachment 9",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


8. Approval to enter into a contract with Executive Evolution to conduct the Parks and Recreation Needs
Assessment Survey in the amount of $7,000; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said
agreement.


Commissioner Brown noted that the request was for $7,000 for Phase 1 of the study, and he understood the
project was a “multi-phased” process, and he asked if staff had considered bidding out the study as a “multi-
phase” process to various contractors.  Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee replied that staff did not
bid out the study, and that staff only considered Phase One since that was what was discussed at the
September 7, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop.  She added that money was only allocated for Phase
1 of the Study.  


Commissioner Brown explained that the reason he asked the question was because he did not know what the
next phases would cost, and he asked if the County wanted to enter into something and then find out that the
costs for Phases 2 and 3 are higher than what the Board was willing to pay to continue the study.  He further
questioned whether or not Executive Evolution, who had previously worked with the Library and the County
Commissioners, was qualified to carry the work from Phase 1 to the following phases, or if the County intended
to consider separate vendors.  Mrs. Godbee replied that this work would include separate vendors, and that
Executive Evolution was limited to Phase 1 since they are a qualified firm that specializes in conducting
surveys.  She said staff will take the work and will involve other vendors who have replied that they would work
with a survey conducted by Executive Evolution.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel added that the Board voted to approve Phase 1, and to allocate $7,000 in
funding for Phase 1 of the process, and he noted that the aggregate, projected funding for the entire analysis
and the completion of the Needs Assessment document is about $35,000.  Commissioner Brown asked Mr.
Krakeel if he felt comfortable with the transition going from a firm that would not ordinarily be one that would
conduct a Recreational Study to going to a firm that would conduct the rest of the study.  Mr. Krakeel replied







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 6


that staff had conversations with the firm that did the original Needs Assessment study, and staff asked them
specifically “If we were to engage you, not for the survey work that is being done, would you consider taking
our survey data and bidding on the remainder of the project”, and they indicated that they would.  Discussion
followed.  


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 8.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the
motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and contract with Executive Evolution,
identified as “Attachment 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of staff’s request to award a bid to Trammell Horton for fence repair at a mitigation site in the
amount of $20,290 utilizing funds from the Lake McIntosh project; and authorization for the Chairman
to sign the contract contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


Commissioner Brown said he agreed with Mr. Ognio, who spoke about the request during Public Comment that
going after only three bids was on the low end, since he thought a job like this could have many contractors
who could do the work.  He said the issue was not necessarily about the cost, but he thought that the County
could solicit a lot more bids in Fayette County and the surrounding counties.  


Water System Director Tony Parrott replied that staff held the bid open for an additional two weeks and called
additional fence contractors, but this work is not a typical fence job due to all of the storm damage and cleaning
up necessary prior to installing the fence.  He said this kind of work is not what most fence companies do.  He
repeated that staff took the extra effort to find additional bidders, and that is why the bid was held open an
additional two weeks.  Commissioner Brown asked if this was work that could be bid out in two parts: one to
clean the damage and the other to install a fence.  Mr. Parrott replied that Trammell Horton installed the fence
originally, and that they still bid for a good cost on cleaning the property and installing a fence.  Discussion
followed.  


Commissioner Hearn moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 9.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.
The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to construct a bridge on the relocated Southern
Conservation Trail in the amount of $3,500 utilizing funds from the Lake McIntosh project.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Approval of the October 5, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


12. Consideration of staff’s recommendations concerning the establishment of the position of Director of
Library Services within the County’s Compensation and Classification System.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel explained that with the elimination of the funding for the position of the
Director of Library Services from the Flint River Regional Library System, the County has been placed in the
position that effective January 1, 2012; it would have a library without a Director of Library Services.  He
reminded the Board that over the course of the last several months, staff has been in communication with a
number of entities regarding the position, that the Human Resources Department has developed a job







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 7


description detailing the individual duties and responsibilities of the position, that staff has contacted and has
had discussions with the University of Georgia who conducted the County’s Classification and Compensation
Study in 2007, and additionally, staff has obtained information from the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs that maintains a relational database of job positions and classifications throughout the State of Georgia.
He continued that staff has looked at similar communities that are equivalent to the size of Fayette County with
similar scope and services being provided by the library, as well as the International City Manager’s Association
on what an appropriate range of compensation would consist of for the position.  He continued that staff has
conducted an internal analysis to look at the County’s current positions, similar in terms of scope and
complexity, of administrative direction and management responsibilities, and found that this position, if
approved,  should be classified at Grade 23 with a salary range of $61,100 - $102,000.  He said through his
position, he has the responsibility of determining what an appropriate entry level is, that he has the capability
to hire up to the midrange of the salary.  He said there have been past discussions with the Board about
engaging the current person who is filling the position through the Flint River Regional Library System regarding
her interest in continuing in that capacity, and that he has had some preliminary discussions without finalizing
the offer to her.  He said he anticipated doing that within the next 30 days.  He requested the Board to establish
a position of Director of Library Services with a Grade 23 salary range, and for the salary to be funded, for the
balance of fiscal year beginning January 1 through June 20, 2012, from the County’s Fund Balance.  He said
he would provide the recommended salary to the Board, but it would be half of the approximate range, if
approved by the Board.


Commissioner Brown moved to delay the consideration of creating the position of Director of Library Services,
to study the possibility of reorganizing the library’s current staffing, to appoint an Interim Director until the study
is completed, and to determine what the County can do in order to operate the library in an efficient manner
that will not add to the County’s debt.  


Commissioner Horgan asked if Commissioner Brown was saying the library was not run properly, given his
motion.  Commissioner Brown replied that what he was saying that historically the Flint River Library System
paid this bill for the County, and that he wanted to take a serious look at the current staffing levels, the
possibility of reorganization, to appoint an Interim Director, and to discover if there is a way to handle the
workload efficiently with the current staffing. 


 The motion failed for lack of a second.


Commissioner Hearn moved to approve the establishment of the position of Director of Library Services,
effective January 1, 2012,  within the County’s Compensation and Classification System at Grade 23 with a
salary range from $67,100 to $102,000; with the six months funding for Fiscal Year 2012 to comre from the
Fund Balance.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-1with
Commissioners Brown voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


13. Consideration of staff’s recommended Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Amendments for the four tax-supported
funds, including the General Fund, the Fire Fund, the EMS, and the E-911 Fund.


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland informed the Board that the property tax bills were mailed in September,
and they will be due in November.  She said the final numbers that were billed and have been analyzed by staff,
do have an impact on the budget that adopted for Fiscal Year 2012.  She said staff’s recommendation is for
the Board to amend those budgets that were originally adopted, to reflect the true value of the tax bills that were







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 8


issued.  She said the information was outlined in the provided documentation, as well as provided some
information regarding to closing out Fiscal Year 2011, and the impact all of it would have on the County’s Fund
Balances.


Commissioner Brown asked if the County was in a situation where it has closed out the citizens who have
asked the County to reassess the values of their properties.  Ms. Holland replied that tax bills were mailed in
September, were based on the property digest, and that the digest was adopted in August and finalized for
Fiscal Year 2012.  She added that the County will have a new digest in 2012, and another analysis will have
to be done on that digest when it becomes available.  Commissioner Brown asked what the impact of an appeal
situation could be.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel replied that there are still appeals in the pipeline, that there was no
information on the number of appeals or the financial impact they could pose for the County, but that staff did
not believe they would be material in terms of hundreds of thousands of dollars.  He added there would be
adjustments from appeals that are currently in the pipeline. Discussion followed.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve staff’s recommended Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Amendments for the
four tax-supported funds, including the General Fund, the Fire Fund, the EMS Fund, and the E911 Fund.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


14. Consideration of a request from the Sheriff’s Department Jail Division for funding the cost for removal
of mold and repairs to the inmate shower areas in the Jail.


Major Charlie Cowart reminded the Board that in December 2010, he informed the Board of the presence of
mold in the inmates’ shower at the County Jail, and that last year an independent contractor was invited to the
Jail to test conditions in the jail to confirm that mold was in the jail. He said that since that time, the county has
been treating the surface areas with a commercial solution that has been removing the mold, but the problem
lies beneath the surface.  He said staff contacted the original project management firm who constructed both
the Justice Center and the Jail, Mallet Consulting, as well as Mr. Jim Ingram with IPG (the architectural firm that
designed the facility), both of whom contacted additional experts in the field.  He said the result was the
information and cost that has been presented before the Board for the removal of the mold, for the removal and
replacement of tiles and grates, and making sure the area is impervious to mold by using an epoxy urethane
coating.  He said the cost, which is estimated at approximately $89,000, includes $11,000 for the project
management fee for Mallet Consulting.  He said that the recent repairs that were completed in the exercise
yard, that were originally estimated at $160,000, actually cost was actually just over 50% of the estimated cost.
He said if the mold repair were paid from the fund that was allotted for the exercise yard, the difference that
would have to be found would be approximately $11,000.  


Commissioner Brown said he had read the minutes from the previous meeting where he spoke to the Board
on this issue, that it seemed to him there was a move to look to alternatives to the epoxy resin solution, and
he asked if IPG or Mallet found any other alternatives to the problem.  Major Cowart replied that they found no
other alternatives.  He added that he is not an expert on the subject, and so he has to rely on those who are
experts.  







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 9


Commissioner Horgan asked what the guarantee with the repair work was.  Major Cowart answered that there
was no specific guarantee given, but coating the areas with an epoxy urethane coating will seal the area and
will supposedly make it impervious so that future problems can be curtailed.  Commissioner Horgan said that
at the prior meeting some of the other concerns involved moving the inmate population around while the work
is being done, and he asked if the Jail’s staff has adequate plans for moving the inmates.  Major Coward replied
there were adequate plans in place, and he spoke about some of the considerations that had been evaluated
with respect to moving the inmate population, and how staff thought the situation could be best handled.
Discussion followed.


Chairman Frady moved to approve the $11,163 to complete the recommended project.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the Board it would need to specifically authorize the utilization of
Fund Balance funds.  Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland clarified that she needed the Board to authorize the
utilization of $77,837 from Project 0326A, to authorize the approval to close the project, and authority to utilize
$11,163 from the General Fund’s Fund Balance, in order to pay for the Sheriff’s request.


Chairman Frady amended his motion by moving to approve the request from the Sheriff’s Department Jail
Division to remove mold and make repairs to the inmate shower areas in the Jail, to authorize the utilization
of $77,837 from Project 0326A, to approve the closing Project 0326A, and to authorize staff to utilize up to
$11,163 from the General Fund’s Fund Balance in order to fund the Sheriff’s request.  Commissioner Horgan
amended his second to the motion.  No further discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


15. Consideration of the appointment of Steve Cole to fill an unexpired term on the Fayette County Hospital
Authority which will expire on May 31, 2012; and to an additional four-year term which will commence
on June 1, 2012, and will expire May 31, 2016.


Commissioner Horgan began by reminding the Board that the Fayette County Hospital Authority consists of
five persons appointed by the Board of Commissioners.  He explained that the Hospital Authority was enacted
in the year 2000, and that the Authority only meets when needed.  He told the Board that one of the members
of the Hospital Authority will be moving out of the State of Georgia, and that has left a vacancy in the Authority.
He said he spoke to various people at the hospital and some of the remaining Board members, and in doing
so Mr. Steve Cole was recommended for the position.  He added that he has spoken to Mr. Cole and that his
credentials have been distributed to the Board.  Commissioner Horgan then moved to appoint Steve Cole to
fill an unexpired term on the Fayette County Hospital Authority, which will expire on May 31, 2012; and to an
additional four-year term, which will commence on June 1, 2012, and will expire May 31, 2016.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the motion.


Chairman Frady stated that the Board has Mr. Cole’s resume, and that he thought Mr. Cole was highly qualified
for the position.  Commissioner Horgan noted that Mr. Cole was in the audience, and Chairman Frady asked
him to stand in order to be recognized.


Commissioner Brown asked if the position was advertised to the public in order to solicit anyone to the position.
After being informed the position had not been advertised, he said that as a general rule he had taken an
ongoing stance, as it pertains to authorities, committees, and boards that the County should solicit positions







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 10


to the general public in order for applicants to turn in an application, have interviews, and select from the pool
of citizens who express an interest.  He said his stance was not directed to Mr. Cole personally, but based on
principle; he could not support the nomination.


The motion to appoint Steve Cole to fill an unexpired term on the Fayette County Hospital Authority, which will
expire on May 31, 2012; and to an additional four-year term, which will commence on June 1, 2012 and will
expire on May 31, 2016, passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 16", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


16. Consideration of reappointment of Jack Smith, Mary Shaver, and Brian Cardoza to the Fayette County
Public Facilities Authority for another one-year term commencing November 1, 2011, and ending
October 31, 2012.


Chairman Frady asked County Administrator Jack Krakeel how long Jack Smith served on the Public Facilities
Authority.  Mr. Krakeel replied that he thought Mr. Smith was appointed to the position, as an original member
of the Authority, in 2000 or 2001.  Chairman Frady replied that Mr. Krakeel was correct, and that he wanted to
stop the misinformation.  Commissioner Horgan replied that both Jack Smith and Mary Shaver have been
members of the Authority since 1999, and Brian Cordoza was first appointed in 2009.  He explained that the
Public Facilities Authority is a special body that only meets when needed.  Commissioner Horgan then moved
to reappoint Jack Smith, Mary Shaver, and Brian Cardoza to the Fayette County Public Facilities Authority for
another one-year term commencing November 1, 2011, and ending October 31, 2012.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown asked if the positions were advertised, and was informed the positions were not
advertised.  He then commented that the voters had already spoken about Mr. Smith in the recent election, and
he thought the positions should be advertised for general response from the citizens.  He added that he had
an issue with Mr. Cardoza’s nomination since he is also participating on the Water Committee.  He asked if the
pool of eligible, highly qualified people in Fayette County is so incredibly small that there has to be a doubling-
up with members on committees and authorities and boards appointments.  He said he wanted to expand the
County’s horizons and get as many qualified, educated, passionate and diverse people in the positions as
possible.  He said his stance should not to be taken personally, but he repeated that the positions should be
publically advertised.  Discussion followed.   


The motion to reappoint Jack Smith, Mary Shaver, and Brian Cardoza to the Fayette County Public Facilities
Authority for another one-year term commencing November 1, 2011 and ending October 31, 2012 passed 4-1
with Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 17", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


17. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to reprioritize the Stormwater Capital Projects 2012 budget
by swapping the 150 Hall Place Capital Improvement Project with the Kari Glen Drive Drainage Capital
Improvement Project, and to increase the Stormwater Capital Projects budget by transferring $7,980
from Project #9220A- Road- Dust Control, for the Kari Glen Capital Improvement Project.







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 11


Director of Stormwater Management asked the Board to adjust the Capital Improvement Project List that was
originally presented during the last budget meetings, in order to place a higher priority on the Kari Glen Capital
Improvement Project instead of on the 150 Hall Place Capital Improvement Project.  She explained that this
request was because if an emergency repair had to be made, the Public Works Division could make the repairs
on Hall Place, however, it would be extremely difficult to do an emergency repair or provide emergency access
to those affected at Kari Glen.


Commissioner Brown asked who decided on the Centrifugally Cast Concrete Pipes.  Mrs. Birrell replied that
both Public Works and Stormwater staff discussed that option, that spun concrete or centrifugally cast concrete
pipes were considered as the best options, but that the centrifugally cast concrete pipes were recommended
since they are the most economical way to preserve the structure of the pipes without replacing them.  She
added that replacing the pipes would have an astronomical cost, that the pipes are between 25 and 30 feet
deep, and that the expected life for this repair work is 25 years.


Commissioner Hearn asked if Kari Glen was a one-way-in, one-way-out subdivision.  When informed it was,
Commissioner Hearn noted that the complexity of the project increased due to the limited ability to get to the
subdivision.  He added that if the pipe failed then the County would have to build a detour to conduct the
repairs, and that the project would be tough, given the situation.


Commissioner Hearn moved to approve staff’s recommendation to reprioritize the Stormwater Capital Projects
2012 budget by replacing the 150 Hall Place Capital Project with the Kari Glen Drainage Improvement Project.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 18", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


18. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #796-Centrifugally Cast Concrete Pipe to the low-
bidder, Utility Asset Management, in the amount of $47,980 for repair work at Kari Glen Drive, and to
authorize the Chairman to sign said contract upon review by the County Attorney.


Commissioner Hearn moved to approve staff’s recommendation to award Bid #796- Centrifugally Cast Concrete
Pipe to low-bidder, Utility Asset Management, for $47,980, to authorize the Chairman to sign the said contract
upon review by the County Attorney, and to transfer $7,980 from Project #9220A- Road- Dust Control, for the
Kari Glen Capital Improvement Project.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.
The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 19", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Executive Session Request: County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the Board that a personnel matter needed
to be addressed in Executive Session.


NAACP Lawsuit: County Attorney Scott Bennett reported about the filed lawsuit from the NAACP concerning
redistricting Fayette County.  He said Fayette County has retained Strickland Brockington Lewis, LLP, since they are
a niche-practice firm that represents governments in similar lawsuits.  He said that the lawsuit is a very specialized one,
and that the County has retained demographers to look at the available data to determine if the NAACP’s contention is
correct that the County could draw a map with a majority minority district.  He closed saying there is a lot of work involved
in the process, that the County is actively evaluating the case, and that this would be time-consuming work.  







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 12


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Allen McCarty: Commissioner McCarty reported that his mother-in-law fell down last night,  and since
there was concern that she had broken her hip, he called Fayette County’s 911 service for help.  He observed that
Fayette County has a fantastic emergency response system as they responded within minutes, as they took “exquisite’
care of his mother-in-law, and made her feel as comfortable as possible as they went to the hospital without incident.
He thanked Public Safety employees for their work and care.  


Commissioner Steve Brown:   Commissioner Brown reported that Fayetteville Mayor Ken Steele has stated on two
occasions that he (in his capacity as mayor of Peachtree City) and the Peachtree City Council had approved the 2003
Transportation SPLOST list and the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He continued that Mayor Steele was inferring that he
was being somewhat hypocritical about his current opposition to the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He informed the Board
that he called the City of Peachtree City about this issue, that the city provided him with correspondence from May 21,
2004, and that the correspondence was addressed to the Honorable Chairman Greg Dunn of the Fayette County
Commission.  He read the letter into the record and the letter clarified that there: “was no record of agreement by
Peachtree City concerning a Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax, and that in no way should the Fayette County
Commissioners infer that the correspondence or project list obligates the City of Peachtree City to an agreement of any
kind regarding the Fayette County Transportation Plan or the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax”.  Commissioner
Brown emphasized there was no agreement from Peachtree City, that the city never agreed to the West Fayetteville
Bypass or the SPLOST list, and that the letter (signed by him as mayor) was copied to all the city’s council members
and was provided to all the mayors– including Fayetteville Mayor Ken Steele.  He said he did not know what Mayor
Steele was finding all of his information, but that he was “blatantly wrong”.


Chairman Herb Frady: Chairman Frady said he had a question for Commissioner Brown since Commissioner Brown
had asked him a question last week.  He said that Councilman Eric Imker wrote an article for the paper approximately
four months ago concerning a purchase Steve Brown made, when he was mayor of Peachtree City, for $800,000 to build
a bridge at Wynnnmeade Parkway.  He said the article had claimed that Mayor Brown called a meeting “one day with
some other Council members, and had the meeting the next day to purchase the property without giving the public
reasonable knowledge”.  Chairman Frady asked Commissioner Brown to explain that action.  Commissioner Brown said
he had not read Mr. Imker’s letter, but if he could be provided a copy of the letter he would be glad to read it and
comment on it afterwards.  Discussion followed.  


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Personnel: Commission Horgan moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss a personnel matter.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:22 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:35 p.m.







Minutes
October 27, 2011
Page Number 13


Executive Session Affidavit and Adjournment: Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an
Executive Session Affidavit stating personnel was discussed in Executive Session, and to adjourn the October 27, 2011
Board of Commissioners Meeting.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 20", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman                      


    


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 10th day of November 2011.


___________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


November 2, 2011
 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Workshop Session on November 2, 2011 at
3:30 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order.


Chairman Frady called the November 2, 2011 Workshop Meeting to Order at 3:33 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Further consideration of a request from the Department of Fire and Emergency Services concerning the
placement of a cellular monopole tower on the site of Fire Station No. 1 which is located on 450
Highway 279 in North Fayette County.


Fire Chief Allen McCullough and Deputy Fire Chief Thomas Bartlett addressed the Board concerning this
request.  Chief McCullough reported that at the October 5, 2011 Workshop Meeting, the Board directed staff
to contact other, potential vendors to determine if there was interest for the particular site at Fire Station







Minutes
November 2, 2011
Page Number 2


Number 1.  He provided a spreadsheet for the Board that indicated their findings from five vendors, and he said
the top three vendors on the list were the ones staff was most interested in currently.  He explained that the
Board considered four variables: 1) potential revenue source streams, 2) the lease terms, 3) the monopole
requirement; and 4) to keep the site limited to the identified 1,200 square feet.  He said the information
presented to the Board was the most recent available, however, staff has two questions that are pending for
both T-Mobile South and Messaging Center Management.


Commissioner Horgan asked which questions had not been answered.  Chief McCullough replied that the
questions specifically asked to T-Mobile South were if the proposed $1,500 per month was their firm offer, and
if they have the potential to increasing the size on the monopole for other providers.  He said that while T-
Mobile has acknowledged the question, staff is trying to get confirmation on their answers.  He said the
questions to Messaging Center Management was to see if they would provide a payment at with a signed
contract, prior to monthly uses; similarly to what other providers had agreed to.  


Commissioner Brown said he liked what Site Concepts offered with their proposal, but that their requirement
for 2,500 square feet was burdensome. He asked if staff, when it submitted requests for information, submitted
a maximum envelope that the work should be in, and if not, could staff return to the providers with that updated
information.  Chief Bartlett replied that staff had spoken about the space limitations with the providers, so all
the providers were working with the same information.  He added that Site Management’s request is for a
triangle of land that adjoins the Department of Transportation’s right-of-way, and that would make the site “not
cosmetic”.


Commissioner Horgan said he did not like that all the other providers, save T-Mobile South, are suggesting
taller monopoles.  He said he was unsure what the County’s concern was for the height of the tower, but he
thought the 100-foot tower was adequate for that small area of land.  Discussion followed.


Chief McCullough requested that staff be allowed more time to obtain answers to the remaining questions, and
then to return to the November 10, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting with a recommendation.


The Board directed that staff return to the November 10, 2011 Board of Commissioners Meeting with additional
information and their recommendation.  The Board took no formal action on this consideration during this
meeting.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


2. Discussion of staff’s request to work with Merchant Capital in order to partially refund the Water
System’s Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, which aggregate an outstanding balance of $19,600,000, and
to issue additional bonds totaling $9,000,000 for the Water System’s Magnetic Ion Exchange Project.


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland reminded the Board that Water System Director Tony Parrott has been
providing periodic updates regarding a new requirement by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) that
the Water System is mandated to meet in 2012.  She said, based on that consideration, the Board authorized
staff to engage with the Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) Project in order to address the requirement.  She said,
concerning MIEX, it has been determined that the cost will be approximately $9,000,000, and at the time this
project was first discussed, staff pondered a potential water rate increase between 4 and 7 percent.  However,
with the Board’s directive not to enact raises in water rates, staff conducted additional analysis and was ready
to recommend financing the $9,000,000.  She clarified that staff was recommending that the County do a
refunding of an existing bond series, namely Series 2002, and it would be available for refunding in July 2012.
She said the refunding at that time indicated the County could save about $1.5 million.  She continued that staff







Minutes
November 2, 2011
Page Number 3


also recommended the issuance of a bond for the additional $9,000,000.  She said the original discussion
involved enacting two Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority (GEFA) loans, but after further research, staff
no longer recommended that approach.  She said the restructuring would follow the 2002 Bond Series, and as
the County moves forward the process, staff will provide periodic information in order to obtain direction.
Chairman Frady asked if this was recommended in lieu of raising water rates in Fayette County.  Ms. Holland
replied that was correct.  


Commissioner Brown asked if refunding the existing Series 2002 and the $9,000,000 would all take place in
July 2012.  Ms. Holland replied that was correct.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel stated that the actual sale would not occur until July 2012, but the bonds
could be locked in as early as March 2012, and therefore there could be a request as early as March to take
formal action to lock in the rates.  Commissioner Brown said he was in favor of saving money, and he asked
what the projected annual debt service would be on the $9 million.  Mr. Krakeel said one recommendation
would be that the savings that are realized on the 2002 Bonds are calculated into the County’s annual debt
payment structure over the life of the Bonds; reducing the annual requirement.  He continued that the County
would be able to maintain its debt coverage ratios, even with the issuance of $9 million.  Ms. Holland added
that the current rate that is on the 2002 Series is just over 5%, and the refunding would put the County at 2.4%
and that the additional borrowing of $9,000,000 would be at 3.3 percent.  Discussion followed.


The Board directed staff to place this request on the November 10, 2011 Consent Agenda for a formal vote.
The Board took no formal action during this meeting.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


3. Discussion of staff’s recommendation to implement a proposed Grant Management policy.


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland informed the Board that Fayette County has been undergone four audits
during the last couple of months, and those audits are related to grant awards and federal seizures’ funds.  She
said the County is seeing a lot of exposure due to the number and types of audits being performed.  She said
one suggestion that was made to the County was to have an overall Grant Management Policy.  She asked
the Board to consider the drafted policy provided to it, and if the Board agreed to it, to approve it at the
November 10, 2011 Board of Commissioners Meeting. 


Chairman Frady asked if staff this proposed policy would provide some flexibility if needed.  Ms. Holland replied
that the policy has a provision that allows staff, if they cannot meet the normal time line, to approach the County
Administrator with a request for approval.  Then, as soon as possible, the request would be taken to the Board
for formal approval.  Other discussion followed.


The Board directed staff to place this request on the November 10, 2011 Consent Agenda for a formal vote.
The Board took no formal action during this meeting.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Discussion of staff’s recommendations regarding a proposal for lighting at McCurry and Kiwanis Parks.


Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee informed the Board that the County has some fields that need
refurbished lighting.  She reminded the Board that this process began in 2003 based on the County’s Needs
Assessment, and the reasons for this refurbishment initiative was due to safety concerns such as low light







Minutes
November 2, 2011
Page Number 4


levels, rotten wooden poles, and other various issues.  She added that some of the systems are at least 30
years old, and therefore they are causing some safety concerns.  She said that this year, staff issued Requests
for Proposal (RFP) that were sent to 24 vendors, four of whom responded.  She explained that the lowest bid
was received from Donald Camp Electric, and that this vendor had the best proposal with regard to the amount
of time it would take to complete the project.  She added that due to budget constraints, staff asked that only
the Kiwanis Tennis Courts, McCurry Softball Field #5, McCurry Football Field #1, and Soccer Fields #2 and #3
be considered for lighting.  She said the aggregate cost for this work would be approximately $390,000.  She
noted that Field #3 would require a soil sample in order to ensure the soil could support a light pole, and if a
spread footer foundation is not required, then the aggregate cost will decrease by $5,330.  Discussion followed.


The Board directed staff to place this request on the November 10, 2011 Consent Agenda for a formal vote.
The Board took no formal action during this meeting.  A copy of this request, identified as “Attachment 4",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Publication of the November 2, 2011 Workshop Agenda Package: County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the
Board that a citizen contacted the County earlier in the week concerning the inability to access the November 2, 2011
Workshop Agenda from the County’s website.  He informed the Board that a “technical glitch” occurred with its
publication.  He explained that the County uses a third party, off-site web hosting service, and that agendas are sent to
that service.  The service then formats the agenda and places it on the web, and it was during this process that the
technical glitch took place.  He told the Board that there was a technical glitch in that process.  He stressed that he
wanted everyone to understand that Fayette County has always met its legal requirements for advertising and publishing
the agenda, and the November 2, 2011 Workshop Agenda was no exception.  He informed the Board that the agenda
was posted to the County’s legal organ, Fayette Daily News, within the prescribed timeframe, and that the agenda was
back on the website by Monday.  


Alcohol Sales in Fayette County: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reminded the Board that from time to time
discussions occur concerning alcohol sales in Fayette County, and whether or not the Board has any desire or interest
in placing the Sunday’s Sale of Alcohol on any voters’ ballot.  He reminded the Board that during the recent budget
discussions, the Board determined it would not put the consideration on a ballot since it would necessitate holding a
special election.  He told the Board that the municipalities do have this issue on their ballots for the upcoming November
2011 election.  He asked the Board if they wanted to consider this issue in order to place it on a ballot during next year’s
election season.  The Board agreed to discuss the issue further during its upcoming Retreat scheduled in January 2012.


January 2012 Board Retreat: County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the Board that staff is beginning the
preparatory work towards a Retreat during January 2012.  He asked each Commissioner to communicate to Executive
Assistant Carol Chandler in order to identify any dates in January that are undoable and any dates that are available for
a retreat.  He said his current anticipation was to conduct a one-day Retreat.  He further requested that the Board identify
any issues they want to have discussed at the Retreat from the Board’s perspective.  He added that he has already given
directives to Department Managers, and they are preparing a list of critical issues for consideration.  He asked that the
Commissioners provide him with their concerns in order to see that they are addressed at the Retreat.   The Board asked
Commissioner Hearn to provide his work schedule, and potential dates he would be available to meet, in order for the
Board to decide what day would be most conducive for the entire Board to meet.  The Board further requested Ms.
Chandler to email each Commissioner and to remind them to provide available dates as soon as possible.







Minutes
November 2, 2011
Page Number 5


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Hearn: Commissioner Hearn noted that the water level at Lake Horton is significantly down, and he
asked Water System Director Tony Parrott to consider the possibility of extending either one or both boat ramps at the
lake.  He gave some suggestion on how it could be done inexpensively and efficiently, and briefly spoke about the
benefits of extending the boat ramps.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Hearn moved to adjourn the November 2, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
     Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk                                                           Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 10th day of November 2011.


___________________________________
     Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
November 10, 2011


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of 911 Practitioner, Mr. Lynn Bianco.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Danny & Ani, LLC
d/b/a Davis Country Store, 1619 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, Ana
Bradshaw Owner / Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 247 of the
4th District, front on SR 92 South, and is zoned A-R.  This is for a Change of
Ownership.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


3. Approval of staff’s request to work with Merchant Capital in order to partially
refund the Water System’s Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, which aggregate an
outstanding balance of $19,600,000, and to issue additional bonds for the
Water System’s Magnetic Ion Exchange Project.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to implement a proposed Grant
Management Policy.


5. Approval of staff’s request to utilize $3,325 from the County’s Fund Balance
to purchase a replacement radio used to activate an Early Warning Weather
Siren on Ellis Road.


6. Approval of staff’s request to accept donations, from various sources, to the
Department of Fire and Emergency Services, to increase the Fire Fund’s
Donations-Miscellaneous Revenue Account by $1,320 and to increase the
Fire Fund’s Food / Catered Meals Expense Account by $1,320 in order to
account for the donations.


7. Approval of staff’s request to transfer the remaining $126 from the Fire Fund’s
Fiscal Year 2011 Donations Revenue Account to the current Fiscal Year 2012
Donations Revenue Account.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
November 10, 2011
Page Number 2


8. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office-
Criminal Investigations Division by $487.49 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various
Federal agencies.


9. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the City
of Fayetteville, allowing for the County to resurface Johnson Avenue, Lakepoint Lane, and Lakeland Circle with
the City of Fayetteville; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement.


10. Approval of staff’s request to award Bid #P798- Sports Lighting to Donald Camp Electric in the amount of
$3690,980; and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and other related documents contingent
upon the County Attorney’s review.


11. Approval of staff’s request to award Bid #799 to low bidder Natural Enclosures Fence Company, in the amount
of $26,500, in order to replace the fence at Brooks Park Field #2, and authorization for the Chairman to sign
the contract and other related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


12. Approval of the October 13, 2011 Board of Commissioners Minutes, the October 27, 2011 Board of
Commissioners Minutes, and the November 2, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Further consideration of a request from the Department of Fire and Emergency Services regarding placement
of a cellular monopole tower on the site of Fire Station No. 1.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Communications Chief M. Allen McCullough


Recognition of 911 Practitioner, Mr. Lynn Bianco.


In 2008, the Fayette County E-911 Communications Center implemented the 911 Practitioner Program.  This program, supervised by 


Captain Cheryl Rogers and Corporal Nicole Smith, is comprised of credentialed volunteers.  All 911 Practitioners must meet all local, 


state, and federal mandates, must have previous basic radio communication knowledge, and must belong to a recognized radio entity 


such as the local Amateur Radio Emergency Services (ARES) group.  In addition, all 911 Practitioners must successfully complete the 


National Crime Information Center / Georgia Crime Information Center (NCIC / GCIC) workbook and test, successfully complete Security 


and Integrity training, and successfully complete the in-house training for non-emergency call taking, Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 


entry, and WebEOC. 


 


Mr. Lynn Bianco, an original member of the 911 Practitioner Program, has volunteered more than 100 hours of call-taking in the Fayette 


County 911 Communications Center, throughout 2010 and 2011.  He provides Fayette's citizens with an invaluable service and is an 


integral part of the Center's operations.  Additionally, Mr.. Bianco has trained as a Fire / EMS dispatcher.  His selfless volunteerism is a 


great benefit in handling the ever-increasing call volume received by Fayette County- especially during surge moments.   


 


Mr. Bianco, always the consummate professional, is a welcomed member to the Fayette County Public Safety family.


Recognition of 911 Practioner, Mr. Lynn Bianco.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, November 10, 2011







 
 
 
 
 
 


Resolution 
 


 RECOGNIZING  
MR. LYNN BIANCO, 9-1-1 PRACTITIONER 


 
 
 
WHEREAS,  Volunteerism may be defined as contributing one's time or talents for 


charitable, educational, social, political, or other worthwhile purposes, 
usually in one's community, freely and without regard for compensation; 
and 
 


WHEREAS,   Americans have shaped this nation by their voluntary efforts: providing 
services, organizing political action, caring for the poor, reaching out to 
the disadvantaged, providing education, ensuring equality and civil rights 
for all citizens, and working for change; and    
   


WHEREAS,  "Volunteers are somebody!  Somebody who cares, Somebody who 
devotes time without pay, Somebody who praises all, large or small and 
Somebody who has a common bond with others to make things better."  
(Unknown Author), and  


 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 
GEORGIA, by way of this resolution, recognize and honor Mr. Lynn Bianco, for his selfless 
dedication and volunteer service as a Call Taker.  Mr. Bianco, a 9-1-1 Practitioner in the Fayette 
County E 9-1-1 Communications Center, has volunteered more than 100 hours in years 2010 and 
2011.  Lynn provides our citizens an invaluable service and is an integral part of Center 
operations.  His selfless volunteerism is a great benefit in handling the ever-increasing call 
volume received at our Center, especially during surge moments.  The 9-1-1 Practitioner’s 
Program is a unique tool and Lynn Bianco, always the consummate professional, is a welcomed 
asset to our Fayette County Public Safety family. 
 
 
 So Resolved this ____ day of November, 2011, by the 
 
 
        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
                   __________________________ 
        Herb Frady, Chairman 
Attest: 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk / Deputy Clerk 





		Communications- Lynn Bianco Agenda Request File.pdf

		Communications- Lynn Bianco Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Approval of staff's recommendation to implement a proposed Grant Management Policy.


Historically, Fayette County has actively and successfully pursued various grant opportunities Over the last few months, several on-site 


audits by an awarding agency have been conducted regarding grant management.  The purpose of these site visits included performing 


grant financial and programmatic monitoring, and included an  assessment on the overall accounting system, program services, agency 


reimbursement procedures and recording keeping, and employee policies. 


 


One of the audit findings and recommendations is for the County to have written policies with specific guidelines for the fiscal 


management of grant funds.  Consequently, staff is presenting a proposed Grant Management policy for the Board of Commissioners 


approval. 


 


This proposed Grant Management policy was presented to the Board at the November 2, 2011, and during that time the Board agreed to 


have the proposal placed on the Consent Agenda for formal action. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to implement a proposed Grant Management Policy.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, November 2, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011







FAYETTE COUNTY 


POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 


 


FISCAL POLICY  
Grant Management  


300.11  
 


 


PURPOSE  
  
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance to staff to ensure the coordinated and efficient 
administration of all County grants.  
 
 
POLICY  
 
The Board of Commissioners (BOC) actively encourages all departments and agencies to seek grant 
opportunities as alternative sources of funding for the achievement of outcomes and delivery of services 
desired by the citizens of Fayette County.  There shall be a consistent and uniform process for obtaining 
authorization from the BOC to solicit, apply, accept, and budget for grants for the County and the 
management and reporting of grant activity by the County.  
 


 


PROCEDURE  


 
All departments and agencies must adhere to the procedures outlined in this policy for all monies received 
through federal direct aid, federal pass-through aid, state aid and other grants.  
 
Grant opportunities provided by for-profit corporations will not be considered unless it is documented 
within the grant agreement that the County is not providing an endorsement of the corporation and/or its 
products. Solicitation by the corporation will not be allowed.  
 
All federal and state grants are subject to federal and state requirements.  
 
 
1) Grant Solicitation 


 
a) The BOC encourages the pursuit of any such grants provided that all fiscal implications, such as 


matching funds and continuing costs, are clearly identified in advance of the BOC’s review and 
approval as provided herein.  


 
b) Departments and agencies shall notify the Finance Department of its intent to solicit grant 


funding providing support of the fiscal impacts as outlined in 1a.  
 
 
2) Grant Application Process 


 
a) All departments and agencies seeking grant funds must obtain advance authorization from the 


BOC through the agenda process.  
 







b) Authorization by the BOC will include the solicitation, application, acceptance, and budget of 
required funding for the grant. The budget will be for the appropriate fiscal year, subsequent 
fiscal years must be included in the normal budget process.  
 


c) When a grant opportunity presents itself without sufficient time to go through the BOC agenda 
process, subsequent ratification of an application is permitted. In this case, the department or 
agency must notify the County Administrator in writing of their intent to apply for the grant and 
obtain approval of the County Administrator prior to submitting the grant application. BOC 
ratification of the grant application must be sought through the agenda process as soon as possible 
after applying for the grant based on the agenda submission schedule.  
 


d) The department or agency obtaining the grant will serve as the grant project/program 
administrator and is responsible for preparing the agenda item and must include: 
i) A copy of the grant application. 
ii) A budget amendment, coordinated with Finance for account assignment, outlining the grant 


amount and matching local funds as applicable. 
iii) Supporting documentation including correspondence with granting agency and verification of 


available local match funding. 
iv) Continuing operating costs identified and documented.  


 
 
 


3) County Tax Support Implications 
 


a) All current or future County tax support funding implications associated with the grant must be 
identified and assessed prior to submission for BOC approval.   


 
b) Types of County tax support should include required local cash match, revenue and expenditure 


budget impact, impact on other departments and agencies, continuation of services when grant 
funding terminates, and any other type of implication not specifically identified in this policy.  


 
c) Any positions funded by the grant must be identified at the time of BOC application 


authorization.  
 


d) The County will not automatically assume responsibility for a position upon termination of the 
grant funds. Replacement funding must be requested during the normal annual budget process.  


 
e) Employees in County positions funded by grants are potentially eligible for unemployment 


compensation benefits upon termination of the grant funding. These benefit payments are at the 
County’s expense and must be covered by the requesting department’s existing operating budget.  
 


 
4) Grant Notification  


 
a) Award – When a department or agency is notified of a grant award, the department or agency 


shall inform the BOC, County Administrator, and Chief Financial Officer. This notification must 
be made in writing and include pertinent information about the grant including grantor, grant 
amount, grant period, and grant purpose.  
i) Finance will post the appropriate budget amendment upon award notification. 


 
b) Denial – When a denial of the grant award is received, the department or agency shall inform in 


writing the BOC, County Administrator, and Chief Financial Officer.  







 
 


c) Withdrawal – In the event that a grant application needs to be withdrawn or an award declined, 
the department and agency shall submit a BOC agenda request for the BOC to authorize the 
County Administrator to execute a letter of withdrawal to terminate the application or agreement 
as applicable. The agenda item support documentation must include the reason for such action, 
the approved agenda, and any correspondence with the grantor.  
 


 


5) Grant Administration  
 


a) Grant Management - Each department or agency shall budget and manage its grant funds in 
accordance with the grantor’s and the County’s fiscal policies. Compliance with special 
conditions or any other grantor requirement/guidance as outlined in the grant shall be the 
responsibility of the department or agency obtaining the grant. The department should coordinate 
with other county departments in a timely manner to fulfill any unique stipulations associated 
with the grant.  


 
b) Budgeting - As applicable, grants should be incorporated into the County’s budget process and 


five-year CIP plan. This is separate from the initial BOC agenda process requesting authorization 
to solicit, apply, accept and budget for the grant. Subsequent differences in the grant amount 
awarded and the budgeted amount adopted by the BOC will require a budget adjustment via the 
BOC agenda process. The department or agency should work with the Finance department in 
determining adjustment(s) needed.  


 
c) Procurement - All purchasing policies and procedures shall be followed, as they apply, for the 


purchase of goods, services, or construction made with grant funds. Nothing in this policy, 
however, shall prevent the County from complying with terms, conditions, or other requirements 
of a federal, state, or other grant which supersedes the County’s purchasing policies.  


 
d) Personnel - All human resource policies and procedures shall be followed, as they apply, for the 


administration of the grant award including but not limited to compliance with the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan requirement. 


 
e) Accounting/Reporting – Grant recipients shall be responsible for the following: 


i) Revenue Monitoring - Submittals for grant reimbursement must be reconciled against actual 
receipts and provided to Finance for proper accounting.  Receipt of grant reimbursed funds 
shall be provided to Finance for validation and deposit. 


ii) Expenditure Control – only grant-related expenditures shall be charged to the grant account. 
All expenditures must meet the authorized use of funds as per the grant agreement. Finance 
must be notified and provided documentation required to record capital equipment or fixed 
assets. Departments shall not use grant funding to supplant County funds.  


iii) Reporting – the department or agency shall ensure all procedures and requirements are 
followed in preparing and submitting financial and project reports, reimbursement requests, 
close out reports and any other documents as outlined in the grant agreement in a timely 
manner. 


iv) Supporting Documentation - the department or agency shall provide Finance additional 
information needed to support grant transactions including: 
(1) All correspondence with the grantor 
(2) Grant agreement 
(3) Amendments 
(4) Extension requests and authorizations 







(5) Requests for reimbursement with summary backup 
(6) All reports – financial, program/project related 
(7) Close out reports 


 
v) Record Retention – each department or agency shall retain all financial files related to the 


grant for a period of five years after the submission of the final financial report or as 
otherwise specified in the grant’s terms and conditions, whichever is longer.  


 
 


6) Audit Requirements  


 
Grants may be subject to any or all of the following types of audits: 
 
a) Single Audit – Federally funded programs are subject to audit under the guidelines of the Office 


of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133. If expenditures for all grants of the County 
in the fiscal year total more than $500,000, then a single audit is required.  


 
b) Grantor/Program Audit – individual grantors may audit grant programs as they deem necessary. 


Departments and agencies should familiarize themselves with any grantor audit requirements. 
 


 
Each department or agency should notify Chief Financial Officer in writing of any and all Federal or 
State audits, review, inspections and/or monitoring imposed on the County by a grantor. The 
department or agency should coordinate with Finance on any documentation needed prior to the 
conduction of an audit. Finance will notify the external auditor of any findings as a result of the audit.  


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 





		Finance- Grant Policy Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Grant Policy Backup

		Finance- Grant Policy Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Grant Policy Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance / Water System Mary S. Holland / Tony Parrott


Approval of staff's request to work with Merchant Capital in order to partially refund the Water System's Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, 
which aggregate an outstanding balance of $19,600,000, and to issue additional bonds totaling $9,000,000 for the Water System's 
Magnetic Ion Exchange Project.


During the February 2011 Board Retreat and the March 24, 2011 BOC meeting, staff discussed the requirement to upgrade the two 
Fayette County water plants for removal of total organic carbons (TOC) in order to meet new restrictions by 2012 as set by EPA.  Results 
of pilot testing were presented and the Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) process was recommended.  The BOC authorized Mallett 
Consulting to design engineering plans and oversee a bidding process pertaining to the MIEX project.  It was anticipated at that time that 
a 4-7% water rate increase would be necessary to raise funding to pay for the Project.  At the June 9, 2011 BOC meeting, approval was 
given for a contract with Mallett Consulting for engineering services, including design, plans, specifications, bid documents, contract 
administration, and project management of the MIEX process.  The engineering report has been submitted to DNR.  Once DNR approval 
is granted, the County will be ready to move forward with the MIEX project for which funding of $9,000,000 will be necessary. 
 
To eliminate the need for a water rate increase to fund the Project, staff is recommending the BOC approve a refunding of the Water 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, along with additional funding of $9,000,000 for the MIEX project.  In the current market and after 
issuance costs, the present value savings as a percent of the refunded bonds would be 9.93% or $1,500,000.  The original rate of the 
bonds is 5.06% while the current refunding yield is estimated to be 2.40%.  In the current market, the additional funding of the $9,000,000 
is estimated to have a rate of 3.30%.  The Board authorized placing this request on the Consent Agenda at the November 2 Workshop.


Approval of staff's request to work with Merchant Capital in order to partially refund the Water System's Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, 
which aggregate an outstanding balance of $19,600,000, and to issue additional bonds totaling $9,000,000 for the Water System's 
Magnetic Ion Exchange Project.


$9,000,000 is needed to fund the Water System's MIEX project.


Yes Wednesday, November 2, 2011


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Staff presented this issue to the Board of Commissioners at the Workshop Meeting on November 2 for discussion.


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough


Further consideration of a request from the Department of Fire and Emergency Services regarding placement of a  cellular monopole 


tower on the site of Fire Station No. 1.


T-Mobile South is proposing a 100-foot monopole tower to be located on the corner of the station's property and directly behind the 


building.  This monopole tower would be a single-user site that would house T-Mobile's equipment only with no other lease space 


permitted to any other provider.  T-Mobile would pay a monthly lease fee to Fayette County of $1,500, and the Finance Department 


recommends that 25% of the lease payments will be budgeted to the EMS Fund with the remaining 75% budgeted to the Fire Fund. 


 


Staff presented this consideration to the Board during the October 5, 2011 Workshop meeting, at which time the Board agreed to the 


general concept proposed by T-Mobile South, but the Board directed staff to contact other tower companies to gauge interest and to 


determine if the lease rate offered by T-Mobile could be increased.  Planning and Zoning provided the contact for other providers, and 


staff returned with their findings at the November 2 Workshop.   


 


During the November 2 Workshop Meeting, staff informed the Board that it was attempting to gain more information that may influence 


the Board's decision, and asked to return to the November 10th meeting with that information and a recommendation.


Approval of a request from the Department of Fire and Emergency Services regarding placement of a  cellular monopole tower on the 


site of Fire Station No. 1.


No funding required.  Fayette County will receive $1,500 per month as a lease payment.  The Finance Department recommends that 


25% of the lease payment be budgeted to the EMS Fund and the remaining 75% be budgeted to the Fire Fund.


Yes Wednesday, November 2, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 10, 2011







MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners
       October 5, 2011


 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on October 5, 2011, at 3:30 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


4. Consideration and discussion of a request from T-Mobile South to install a cell tower at Fire Station 1
located on Highway 279.


Fire Chief Allen McCullough and Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett discussed the request from T-Mobile South
to install a cell tower at Fire Station 1.  Chief Bartlett reported that T-Mobile South first approached Fayette
County in 2010 with a similar request, but the County was unable to proceed with the request at that time since
it was not operationally feasible with Public Safety’s operations, since septic lines and drainage lines would
have to be moved.


Chief Bartlett informed the Board that T-Mobile returned to the County in 2011, with a new construction team,
and that they had located another part of the property that avoided the previous complications.  He  spoke
about the proposed tower’s dimensions, requirements, and components.  He informed the Board that
negotiations have gone back and forth between Public Safety and T-Mobile South, and that staff wanted to
know if the Board approved of the concept in general, and, if so, could the contract  be placed on an upcoming
agenda for a formal vote.  Chief Bartlett pointed out that if the Board approved the request, T-Mobile South
would pay a monthly lease to Fayette County of approximately $1,300.  Discussion followed about the concern







Minutes
October 5, 2011
Page Number 2


that the lease payment was insufficient, about the ability of other providers to co-locate on the tower, and about
the type of tower to be installed.


The Board agreed to the general concept proposed by T-Mobile South, however, it directed staff to discuss
other lease payment options with T-Mobile South and other providers before returning to the November 2, 2011
Workshop Meeting with recommendations.  The Board took no action on this item.   A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.















The following is the available information: 
 
T-Mobile South:  $1500.00 mo  
 
Message Center   Awaiting Offer 
Management: 
Joe Grimmett 
860-727-5765 
jgrimmett@mcmgmt.com 
 
American Tower:  Awaiting Offer  
Jeff Moore 
404-580-1321 
 
Site Concepts:   $16,200.00 annually ($1350 mo) 


   $2400 each additional user  
   15% or CPI whichever is less on renew 


 2500 Sq. ft. / 150’ monopole – Requesting larger site. 
 
SBA Communications: $800-$1000 monthly 
Peter Seal 
 
Crown Castle:   No good phone 
 
Highwood Towers:  No interest 
 
Richland Tower:  No interest 
 





























































































		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Backup

		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Backup

		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Backup

		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Backup 1.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Backup 2

		Attachment 4- Fire and EMS- T-Mobile Agenda Request with Backup.pdf

		Fire and EMS- T-Mobile Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- T-Mobile Backup

		10-05-11   Fire & ES    T-Mobile_Slick Stick Tower.pdf

		10-05-11   Fire & ES    T-Mobile_Station 1 (2)





		Attachment 4a



		Fire and EMS- Cell Tower Backup 3





		Attachment 1a.pdf












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to accept donations, from various sources, to the Department of Fire and Emergency Services, to increase the 


Fire Fund's Donations-Miscellaneous Revenue Account by $1,320 and to increase the Fire Fund's Food / Catered Meals Expense 


Account by $1,320 in order to account for the donations.


The Division of Public Safety has an annual Thanksgiving Dinner, and this annual event is paid for by donations received by various 


sources in the Fayette Community. 


 


This year, Public Safety has received $1,320 in donations.  These donations have come from five separate sources. 


 


The Public Safety Division is requesting authorization from the Board to accept the donations, to increase their Fire Fund's revenue and 


expense budgets to properly account for the donations, and to utilize the funds for the upcoming Thanksgiving Dinner.


Approval of staff's request to accept donations, from various sources, to the Department of Fire and Emergency Services, to increase 


Fire Fund's Donations Miscellaneous Revenue Account by $1,320 and to increase Fire Fund's Food / Catered Meals Expense Account 


by $1,320, to account for the donations.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011





		Fire and EMS- Donations Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Donations Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to transfer the remaining $126 from the Fire Fund's Fiscal Year 2011 Donations Revenue Account to the 


current Fiscal Year 2012 Donations Revenue Account.


The County's Fire Fund has $126 remaining in its Donations Revenue Account from the 2011 Fiscal Year.  Donation funds are used to 


pay for the annual Thanksgiving Dinner hosted for the County's Public Safety employees. 


 


Staff is requesting the Board's approval to transfer the remaining $126 from the Fiscal Year 2011 to Fiscal Year 2012 Fire Fund-  


Donation Account.  


 


Approval to transfer funds from the 2011 Budget to 2012 Donations Account, Fire Fund #27030003-371001 in the amount of $126.


Not Applicable.  This request is to transfer funds from the 2011 Donations Budget to the 2012 Donations Account, Fire Fund 


#2703000-371001 in the amount of $126.


No


No


Yes


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Funds from 2011 can not be transferred as the year is closed and these unused funds are classified as assigned fund balance. The BOC 


would have to approve funding the $126 from the Fire Fund's assigned for fire services fund balance of $767,664 increasing revenues 


and expenditures for the $126. 


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011









		Fire and EMS- Fire Funds Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Fire Funds Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough / Thomas Bartlett


Approval of staff's request to utilize $3,325 from the County's Fund Balance to purchase a replacement radio used to activate an Early 


Warning Weather Siren on Ellis Road.


During a routine test, staff learned that the Motorola radio used to active the Early Warning Weather Siren on Ellis Road failed to operate. 


 


Motorola has determined that the radio is unable to be repaired, is no longer supported by the system, and that repair parts are no longer 


made available.   


 


A replacement radio is required since it is vital to the Early Weather Warning System in Fayette County.  It is the instrument that will be 


used to activate the siren located in the Northeastern part of Fayette County, and it specifically covers the north part of Fayetteville and 


the Fayetteville Pavilion.  


Approval of staff's request to utilize $3,325 from the County's Fund Balance to purchase a replacement radio used to activate an Early 


Warning Weather Siren on Ellis Road.


This request will require $3,325 to be utilized from the General Fund's Fund Balance.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011







Quote Number: QU0000165009
Effective: 28 OCT 2011
Effective To: 27 DEC 2011


Bill-To:
FAYETTE COUNTY COMMISSION


140 STONEWALL AVE W STE 101


FAYETTEVILLE, GA 30214


United States


Attention: Sales Contact:
Name: MIKE POLLARD Name: Dena Nunz
Phone: 770-305-5492 Email: dena.nunz@deirr.com


Phone: 4043614840


Contract Number: GEORGIA STATE CONTRACT
Freight terms: FOB Destination
Payment terms: Net 30 Due


Item Quantity Nomenclature Description Your price Extended Price


1 1 M21URM9PW1AN XTL 2500 764-870MHZ, 10-35W $1,152.69 $1,152.69


1a 1 G66AF ADD: DASH MOUNT, NO CONTROL
HEAD


$96.25 $96.25


1b 1 G90AA ADD: NO MICROPHONE NEEDED - -


1c 1 G51AR ENH: SOFTWARE
SMARTZONE/SINGLETONE


$750.75 $750.75


1d 1 G806BD ENH: SOFTWARE ASTRO DIGITAL CAI $396.55 $396.55


1e 1 W947AL ADD: RS232 & IV&D PACKET DATA
INTERFACE


$154.00 $154.00


1f 1 G444AA ADD: CONTROL HEAD SOFTWARE - -


1g 1 G442AA ADD: XTL2500 CONTROL HEAD $224.84 $224.84


1h 1 G142AA DEL: OMIT SPEAKER - -


1i 1 G89AA ADD: NO ANTENNA NEEDED - -


2 1 SVC03SVC0045D FIRE DASH MOUNT INSTALL ZONE 1 $550.00 $550.00


Total Quote in USD $3,325.08


THIS QUOTE IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING:


1 This quotation is provided to you for information purposes only and is not intended to be an offer or a binding proposal.


If you wish to purchase the quoted products, Motorola Solutions, Inc. ("Motorola") will be pleased to provide you with our standard terms
and conditions of sale (which will include the capitalized provisions below), or alternatively, receive your purchase order which will be
acknowledged.


Thank you for your consideration of Motorola products.


2  Quotes are exclusive of all installation and programming charges (unless expressly stated) and all applicable taxes.
3  Purchaser will be responsible for shipping costs, which will be added to the invoice.
4  Prices quoted are valid for thirty(30) days from the date of this quote.
5  Unless otherwise stated, payment will be due within thirty days after invoice.  Invoicing will occur concurrently with shipping.


MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ORDERED PRODUCTS, EXPRESS OR







IMPLIED INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.


MOTOROLA'S TOTAL LIABILITY ARISING FROM THE ORDERED PRODUCTS WILL BE LIMITED TO THE PURCHASE
PRICE OF THE PRODUCTS WITH RESPECT TO WHICH LOSSES OR DAMAGES ARE CLAIMED. IN NO EVENT WILL
MOTOROLA BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.





		Fire and EMS- Motorola Radio Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Motorola Radio Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina/Dennis Dutton


Consideration of  a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Danny & Ani, LLC d/b/a Davis Country Store, 1619 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, 


Georgia, Ana Bradshaw Owner/Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 247 of the 4th District, fronts on SR 92 South, and is 


zoned A-R.  This is for a Change of Ownership.


This application is for a Change of Ownership.  The fingerprints/background checks have been sent to the GCIC and the FBI and the 


results have been reviewed and approved by the Marshal's Office.  The application has been reviewed/approved by the County Attorney. 


The application and site are in compliance with the alcoholic requirements. 


 


Approval of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for a Change of Ownership.


Not Applicable


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, November 10, 2011





		Planning and Zoning- Davis County Store Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Davis County Store Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #799 to low bidder Natural Enclosures Fence Company, in the amount of $26,500, in order to 


replace the fence at Brooks Park Field #2, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and other related documents 


contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Brooks Park fencing on baseball field #1 and #2 was installed many years ago.  Due to the current condition of the fence, a request for 


bid was sent to potential vendors to install new fencing at Brooks Park.  Eight contractors responded to Fayette County's Request for Bid 


#799.  Natural Enclosures Fence Company proposed the lowest overall price and is the only company guaranteeing their workmanship 


for two years.  Due to budget constraints, the recommendation at this time will only include the installation of fencing on Brooks Park 


Field #2 in the amount of $26,500.00.  Installation for fencing on Brooks Park Field #1 will be completed in the future should further funds 


be made available. 


 


 


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #799 to low bidder Natural Enclosures Fence Company, in the amount of $26,500, in order to 


replace the fence at Brooks Park Field #2, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and other related documents 


contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


 This project will be funded through the Parks and Recreation Department's Capital Improvement Budget for Brooks Park Enhancements 


(37260110 541210 2110F).


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  October 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Bid 799 – Brooks Park Fencing 
 
Invitation to Bid #799 solicited bids to replace fencing, including fabric, at Brooks Park 
baseball fields 1, 2, or both, depending on prices and available funds.  Invitations were 
sent directly to 26 vendors.  Notification was also made through the local newspaper, the 
internet, and Chanel 23 in the usual manner. 
 
Eight vendors submitted bids for the work (please see attached tally sheet).  It was 
determined that funds were available to complete fence replacement for only one of the 
fields, so field 2 was chosen.  The lowest bid for this field was submitted by Natural 
Enclosures Fence Company, in the amount of $26,500. 
 
The Purchasing Department concurs with the recommendation of Natural Enclosures 
Fence Company. 
 
Attachment 







RESPONDENTS FIELD 1 FIELD 2 FIELD 1 & 2
EXCEPTIONS & 


PAYMENT TERMS


C & C FENCE CO INC. $38,162.00 $33,110.00 $71,272.00


HFC, LLC
$44,433.00


INCLUDE BONDS
$37,377.00


INCLUDE BONDS
$81,810.00


INCLUDE BONDS NET 10 DAYS


LONG FENCE COMPANY $64,380.00 $53,786.00 $118,166.00
30 DAYS 2% 15 DAYS    
EXCEPTIONS NOTED.


MARTIN-ROBBINS FENCE CO., INC. $52,303.00 $44,424.00 $96,727.00


MCINTYRE FENCING COMPANY $39,449.50 $30,221.65 $69,671.15


NATIONWIDE FENCE BUILDERS, LLC $37,100.00 $33,000.00 $70,100.00


NATURAL ENCLOSURES FENCE CO. $30,635.00 $26,500.00 $57,135.00


TRAMMELL-HORTON CONTRACTING $35,305.00 $30,590.00 $65,895.00


BID #799 FENCING AT BROOKS PARK - TALLY SHEET





		Recreation- Fencing Agenda Re...quest File.pdf

		Recreation- Fencing Backup

		Fencing Project - Purchasing Backup 1.pdf

		Fencing Project - Purchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee, CPRP


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #P798- Sports Lighting to Donald Camp Electric in the amount of $390,980 and authorization for 


the Chairman to sign the contract and other related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


In accordance with the Fayette County Needs Assessment, the lights at the parks need refurbishment due to the safety concerns 


associated with low light levels and age of the equipment.  In order to continue the upgrade plan at the parks, a request for  proposals 


was submitted.  Four contractors responded to Fayette County's Invitation for Proposal #P798.  Donald Camp Electric received the 


highest criteria scoring among those who responded.   Donald Camp Electric proposed the lowest overall price, can install the light 


systems in a timely manner, and met the requirements set forth in the Request for Proposals regarding references.  Due to budget 


constraints, the recommendation at this time will only include the installation of Kiwanis Park Tennis Courts, McCurry Park Softball Field 


#5, McCurry Park Football Field #1, McCurry Park Soccer Field #2 and McCurry Park Soccer Field #3.  In the event the soil borings for 


field #3 do not require a spread footer foundation, then the amount for this field will be priced at the lower of the two prices listed for this 


particular field.  Donald Camp Electric has proposed to reduce his total price if awarded all five fields. 


 


The Board of Commissioners discussed this request at the November 2 Workshop and directed that this request be placed on the 


Consent Agenda for a formal vote.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #P798- Sports Lighting to Donald Camp Electric in the amount of $390,980, and to 


authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and other related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


This request has been budgeted through various Capital Improvement Project's accounts.


Yes Wednesday, November 2, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Related Capital Improvement Projects:  Kiwanis Park Tennis Courts - 8004E and 2110K.  McCurry Park Softball Field #5 - 8005I and 


2110L.  McCurry Park Football Field #1 - 2110L.  McCurry Park Soccer Fields #2 & #3 is 8005H and 2110L.


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  October 23, 2011 
 
Subject: Request for Proposals #798 – Sports Lighting 
 
 
The Purchasing Department requested proposals for sports lighting for Kiwanis Park 
tennis courts and field #11, and for McCurry Park softball fields 5 and 6, football fields 1 
and 3, and soccer fields 2 and 3, depending on proposed prices and available funds.  
After proposals were opened and reviewed, it was determined that funds would be used 
for the Kiwanis Park tennis courts, and for McCurry Park softball field #5, football field #1, 
and soccer fields #2 and 3. 
 
The request for proposals was sent directly to 24 vendors, and was advertised through 
the usual internet sites, newspapers, and Chanel 23.  Four vendors responded. 
 
Of the responding vendors, Donald Camp Electric, Inc. submitted the overall lowest and 
best proposal.  In addition to offering the lowest overall price, this vendor proposes to 
complete the work within 60 days after notification to proceed.  The second-lowest 
vendor would require up to 90 days.  This could present issues as the sports season gets 
underway, if the work was still being done. 







Fayette County Parks & Recreation
Request for Proposals #798 - Sports Lighting


Proposals for the Five Chosen Fields Only


DECO, Inc. Middle
Donald DBA M. Gay Georgia
Camp Davidson Constructors, Outdoor


Description Electric Electric Co. Inc. Lighting
Kiwanis Park Tennis Courts $75,530 $81,392 $75,000 $78,730


McCurry Park Softball Field #5 78,500 No Bid 73,000 82,245


McCurry Park Football Field #1 99,050 No Bid 94,000 115,825


McCurry Park Soccer Field #2 58,300 No Bid 81,000 84,865


McCurry Park Soccer Field #3 (Standard 
footer foundation for 2 poles, and spread 
fotter foundation for 2 poles.  Two poles are 
common with Field #2.


82,100 No Bid 84,000 89,635


Discount if awarded two or more fileds 2,500 2% off
combined


total


1% discount After jobs are
awarded, will go


over ways to
save.


Total price of five chosen projects $393,480 $81,392 $407,000 $451,300
Total price net of discounts $390,980 $79,764 $402,930 $451,300


Note: Price of soccer field #3 if a spread footer foundation is not required:
McCurry Park Soccer Field #3 (Standard 
footer foundation for all poles.  Two poles are 
common with Field #2).


76,770 No Bid 77,000 84,135


10/26/2011 P:\Ted B\Parks & Rec\P798 Tally 10-23-11





		Recreation- Sports Lighting Agenda Request File.pdf

		Recreation- Sports Lighting Backup

		Sports Lighting - Puchasing Backup 1.pdf

		Sports Lighting - Puchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville, allowing for 


the County to resurface Johnson Avenue, Lakepoint Lane, and Lakeland Circle within the City of Fayetteville; and authorization for the 


Chairman to execute said agreement.


Routinely, Fayette County enters into intergovernmental agreements with various jurisdictions in order to perform work that is better 


handled by the County.   


 


The specific Intergovernmental Agreement under consideration would authorize County staff, equipment, and material to be used within 


the City of Fayetteville's limits in order to resurface three city roads.  The roads, which are identified on the Special Stipulations 


Attachment to the agreement (also referred to as Project Number S013656-PRC), are Johnson Avenue, Lakeland Circle, and Lakepoint 


Lane.  The aggregate length of this resurfacing work is approximately 1.21 miles  


 


The City of Fayetteville has agreed to reimburse Fayette County for any material such as asphalt and tack, including over-run quantities 


for leveling and topping used to accomplish this resurfacing project.


Approval of staff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the City of 


Fayetteville, allowing for the County to resurface Johnson Avenue, Lakepoint Lane, and Lakeland Circle within the City of Fayetteville.


The cost to the County is for providing labor and equipment.  These costs will be paid out of the Road Department's existing budget.  The 


City of Fayetteville will reimburse the County the cost of all materials used in performing the work.


Yes Thursday, March 10, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011







 1


STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 


STREET RESURFACING 
 
 AN AGREEMENT entered into this ____day of _____________2011, by and between 
 
FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, acting by and through its 


Board of Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and the CITY of 


FAYETTEVILLE, a political subdivision and municipality of the State of Georgia, acting by and 


through its Mayor and Council, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, to provide for certain street 


work within the corporate limits of the City. 


 
WITNESSETH: 


 
 WHEREAS, the County and the City desire the proper resurfacing of certain streets within 


the  corporate limits of the City to promote adequate and safe means of transportation; and 


 WHEREAS, the County and the City desire to coordinate their efforts and work together in 


the resurfacing of certain streets within the corporate limits of the City, pursuant to their respective 


Resolutions. 


 NOW, THEREFORE, in and for the consideration of the premises and conditions as 


hereinafter provided, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties do 


hereby agree as follows: 


1. 


 The County and the City hereby agree to coordinate their efforts, as hereinafter provided, 


in the resurfacing of the streets that are listed on the attachment to this Agreement known as 


Special Stipulations.  Said Special Stipulations are hereby adopted into this Agreement by this 


reference hereto. 


 







 2


 


2. 


COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES 


 The County agrees to provide the labor and equipment, which it has available, for the 


resurfacing of the streets which have been identified on the Special Stipulations attachment.  Any 


additional County Responsibilities not listed in this paragraph may be contained on the Special 


Stipulations attachment. 


3. 


CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 


 The City shall perform all patching and milling, and shall notify the County when all 


patching and milling has been completed.  The City shall reimburse the County for all materials 


(i.e. asphalt and tack, including over-run quantities for leveling and topping) and shall pay the 


County for the costs of material within 30 days of invoice.  All inadvertent overspray of tack (on 


curb and gutter, driveways, lawn sections, etc.) shall be cleaned up by the City.  The City agrees to 


handle any prior local resident work notification within the work area, in conjunction with the 


County’s paving schedule.  The City is responsible for striping on the streets that require striping.  


The City shall furnish staging/clean out areas each day for paving machine/material cleaning and 


storage. 


4. 


INDEMNIFICATION 


 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the City agrees to hereby and does defend, hold 


harmless and indemnify the County and its officers, directors, employees, agents and 


representatives from and against any and all claims, damages, demands, actions, judgments, 


losses, costs, penalties, liabilities, assessments and expenses including, but not limited to 


attorney’s fees, incurred or suffered by the County that arise out of, or result from, the 


performance of the Work, which are not incurred or suffered due to the negligence of the County. 







 3


 


5. 


CITY STREETS 


 The County and the City agree that streets listed on the Special Stipulations attachment are 


in the city limits of the City, are part of the street system of the City and as such shall be 


completely and solely within the City’s jurisdiction and control.  The resurfacing of the streets 


listed on the Special Stipulations attachment is at the direction of the City and the County assumes 


no interest in the title of said street.  In no manner shall the streets listed on the Special 


Stipulations attachment be deemed a County street.  Unless otherwise agreed, the maintenance and 


repair of said streets shall be the sole responsibility of the City. 


6. 


SECURING WORK SITE 


 The City agrees to assist the County where possible to secure the work site and prevent the 


tampering, vandalism or theft of equipment, tools or materials left at the site by the County, its 


agents or employees, at the close of each working day.  The City also agrees to provide certified 


flaggers and pilot car, if necessary, to alert motorists and ensure caution when work is underway in 


the work area. 


7. 


RIGHTS OF THE PROPERTY 


 The City warrants that it owns or has rights to resurface the aforementioned streets listed 


on the Special Stipulations attachment and further warrants that said work will not violate any 


restrictions, covenants, local or state law. 


8. 


STARTING AND COMPLETION DATES 


 The County agrees to begin work on the project as soon as scheduled work permits, and to 


complete said project in a timely manner subject to inclement weather, existing obligations, and 







 4


circumstances beyond control of the County, in which event the County shall commence or 


complete the project as soon as it may practicably do so. 


9. 


ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


 Any additional terms and conditions which may exist between the parties may be found on 


the Special Stipulations attachment.  To the extent that there may exist a conflict between the 


terms and conditions in this Agreement and the terms and conditions in the Special Stipulations 


attachment, the parties agree that any terms and conditions in the Special Stipulation attachment 


supersede any terms and conditions within this Agreement. 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals the 


day and year as first above written. 


 


      FAYTTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


      By: ________________________ 
             Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 
 
(SEAL) 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
Deputy Clerk 
 
      CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
 
 
      By:_________________________ 
           Mayor, City of Fayetteville 
 
(SEAL) 
 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
 
 







 5


 
 


SPECIAL STIPULATIONS 
                    PROJECT NUMBER  S013656-PRC 


 
 
Streets to be resurfaced;      Miles: 
 
Johnson Ave   from SR 85 to S. Jeff Davis Dr  0.30 miles 
Lakeland Circle Highview Trace to cul-de-sac   0.28 miles 
Lakepoint Lane  from Lakemont Dr to cul-de-sac  0.63 miles 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 





		Road- Intergovernmental Agreement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Road- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office- Criminal Investigations 
Division by $487.49 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office- Criminal Investigations 
Division by $487.49 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


Not Applicable.  This request is to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Department- Criminal Investigations 
Division by $487.49 (10030321-511300) which has been received from various federal programs for the 2011-2012 Fiscal Year.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 10, 2011





